
 

CITY OF MATTOON, ILLINOIS 
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA            

April 7, 2009  
 
6:30 PM BUSINESS MEETING 
 
Pledge of Allegiance 
 
Roll Call  
 
Electronic Attendance  
 
CONSENT AGENDA: 
 
Items listed on the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine in nature and will be enacted 

by one motion. No separate discussion of these items will occur unless a Council Member 

requests the item to be removed from the Consent Agenda. If an item is removed from the 

Consent Agenda, it will be considered elsewhere on the agenda for this meeting.  Prior to 

asking for a motion to approve the Consent Agenda, the mayor will ask if anyone desires to 

remove an item from the Consent Agenda for public discussion. 
 
Minutes of the Regular meeting March 17, 2009 
 
Police Department report for the month of February and Fire Department report for the 
month of March  
 
Payroll and Bills last half of March, 2009  
 
PRESENTATIONS, PETITIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS 
 
This portion of the City Council meeting is reserved for persons who desire to address the 

Council. The Illinois Open Meetings Act mandates that the City Council may NOT take action 

on comments received on matters that have not been identified on this agenda, but the Council 

may direct staff to address the topic or refer the matter for action on the agenda for another 

meeting. Persons addressing the Council are requested to limit their presentations to three 

minutes and to avoid repetitious comments. 

 
NEW BUSINESS: 
 
Motion – Approve Council Decision Request 2009-945: Authorizing the Mayor and Police 

Department designee to execute the ICJA (Illinois Criminal Justice Information 
Authority) Grant application for 75% up to $18,000 for a Police Department 
vehicle grant. (Cline) 

 
Motion – Approve Council Decision Request 2009-946: Approving quote from Fuller-

Wente for the boring of an 8” water main on Marshall Avenue in the amount of 
$11,218.50. (Hall) 

 



Motion – Approve Council Decision Request 2009-947: Approving the plans and 
specifications for the Roundhouse Multi-Sports Complex Project; and 
authorizing the solicitation for competitive bids. (Hall)  OSLAD Grant 

 
Motion – Approve Council Decision Request 2009-948: Approving the plans and 

specifications for South Side Storm Water Detention Basin Construction Project; 
and authorizing the solicitation for competitive bids. (Hall) 

 
Motion – Approve Council Decision Request 2009-949: Approving the plans and 

specifications for two separate sidewalk projects along Broadway and Western 
Avenues; and authorizing the solicitation for competitive bids. (McKenzie) 

 
Motion – Approve Council Decision Request 2009-950: Awarding the 2009 Water 

Treatment Plant chemical bids as follows: (Hall) 
 
   Continental Carbonic CO2    $  9,300.00; 
   Alexander Chemical  Carbon   $44,400.00; 
   SAL Chemical  Polymer   $21,480.00; 
   Brenntag   Chlorine   $  6,982.50;  
   Brenntag   Fluoride   $18,400.00; 
   Water Soln Unlimited Ammonia   $18,000.00; 
   Carus Chemicals  Polyphosphate blend  $22,575.00.  
 
Motion – Approve Council Decision Request 2009-951: Approving bid specifications and 

authorizing a competitive solicitation for the Exhaust System Grant for fire 
stations in the amount of $74,000 with a 5% City match. (Ervin) 

 
Motion – Approve Council Decision Request 2009-952: Approving a home occupation 

application and authorizing the Mayor to sign a permit to enable a beauty shop 
use at 704 Oklahoma by Dusty Arthur.  (Cline) 

 
Motion – Approve Council Decision Request 2009-953: Approving a home occupation 

application and authorizing the Mayor to sign a permit to enable a massage 
therapy business use at 3228 Champaign Avenue by Jennifer Mast. (Cline) 

 
Motion – Approve Council Decision Request 2009-954: Accepting the recommendation of 

Mid-town TIF 
 Incentive Review Committee for the Jan Kroening (J&T Enterprises) project 

located at 1626 Broadway Avenue granting an annual subsidy up to $5,327 
disbursed over a five-year term subject to the availability of funds for roof 
replacement, façade renovations, and electrical upgrades.  (Schilling) 

 
Motion – Adopt Special Ordinance 2009-1325: Authorizing the Mayor and City Clerk to 

sign a promissory note and associated documents with First Mid-Illinois Bank & 
Trust, N.A. for the FurtureGen Project. (Schilling)  

 
Adjourn 



UNAPPROVED MINUTES: 
 

March 17, 2009 (Regular) 
 The City Council of the City of Mattoon held a regular meeting in the City Hall Council 
Chambers on March 17, 2009. 
 
 Mayor David W. Cline presided and called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 
 
 Mayor Cline led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
 The following members of the Council answered roll call physically present: YEA 
Commissioner Randy Ervin, YEA Commissioner Rick Hall, YEA Commissioner Joe McKenzie, 
YEA Commissioner David Schilling, YEA Mayor David Cline. 

 

 Also physically present were City personnel:  Attorney & Treasurer J. Preston Owen, 
Public Works Director David Wortman, Tourism Director Angelia Burgett, Police Chief David 
Griffith, Fire Chief Mike Chism, Assistant Fire Chief Andy Adair, Community Development 
Coordinator Kyle Gill, and City Clerk Susan O’Brien. 
 
 Mayor Cline seconded by Commissioner Ervin moved to approve the consent agenda 
consisting of minutes of the regular meeting March 3, 2009; payroll and bills for the first half of 
March, 2009; and HOME Rehab Grant expenditures. 
 

  
Bills and Payroll first half of March, 
2009   

        
  General Fund      
Payroll         $      245,002.31  

Bills         $        97,704.33  

      Total   $      342,706.64  

  Hotel Tax Fund      

Payroll         $         1,618.08  

Bills         $              53.73  
      Total   $         1,671.81  
  Festival Management     

Bills        $              37.70  
      Total  $              37.70  

  
Insurance & Tort 
Judgment     

Bills         $      173,341.75  
      Total   $      173,341.75  
  Capital Project Fund     

Bills         $              17.50  
      Total   $              17.50  

  
I - 57 East Business 
Dist     

Bills         $        16,000.00  
 
      Total   $        16,000.00  



  Water Fund     
Payroll         $        37,217.01  

Bills         $        35,695.28  
      Total   $        72,912.29  

  Sewer Fund     

Payroll         $        29,382.24  

Bills         $        25,565.89  

      Total   $        54,948.13  
  Cemetery Fund      
Payroll         $         3,412.12  

Bills         $         1,738.08  
      Total   $         4,003.40  
  Health Insurance      

Bills         $        99,798.22  
      Total   $        99,798.22  

 
 Mayor Cline declared the motion to approve the consent agenda carried by the following 
vote:  YEA Commissioner Ervin, YEA Commissioner Hall, YEA Commissioner McKenzie, 
YEA Commissioner Schilling, YEA Mayor Cline.  
 
 Mayor Cline opened the floor for presentations, petitions and communications.   
 
 Mrs. Julia Boyd made a presentation regarding World Autism Awareness Day and the 
challenges of living with an autistic child.  She invited everyone to attend a celebration and 
prayer service on April 2 at the Broadway Christian Church from noon to 7:00 p.m. 
 Mayor Cline read a proclamation on World Autism Awareness Day: 
 

PROCLAMATION 
 

WHEREAS, autism affects all persons regardless of ethnicity, geography or class; 
 
WHEREAS, the incidence of autism in the United States is 1 in 150, and a child is diagnosed 
with autism every 20 minutes; 
 
WHEREAS, more children will be diagnosed with autism this year than with diabetes, cancer 
and AIDS combined; 
 
WHEREAS, autism is a lifelong condition in which the bulk of cost falls in adulthood, creating 
an enormous economic impact; 
 
WHEREAS, this proclamation designates World Autism Day as a United Nations Day to be 
observed to raise global awareness of autism; 
 
WHEREAS, the aim for World Autism Awareness Day is to inform the general public about the 
global health crisis of autism, stress the importance of early diagnosis and early intervention, and 
to celebrate the unique talents and qualities of individuals with autism; 
 
NOW, let it be resolved that the City of Mattoon implements the ideals of World Autism 
Awareness Day in the United States on April 2nd in perpetuity until the cure for autism is found. 
 
IN RECOGNITION THEREOF, I Mayor David W. Cline have hereunto set my hand and seal of 



the City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois to be affixed this 17th day of March, 2009. 
 
 (SEAL)    /s/  David W. Cline 
      David W. Cline, Mayor 
      City of Mattoon, Illinois 
 
 Mr. Herb Meeker of the Mattoon Journal Gazette inquired about the budget meeting.  
Mayor Cline responded with a preliminary budget meeting with the Department Heads.  
Attorney & Treasurer Owen responded the same and added the next council would determine the 
budget.  He announced an all day April 9th budget meeting where the new council would attend. 
 
 Mr. Meeker requested verification on the Depot bid change as only the terrazzo flooring 
and reduction in cost.  Mayor Cline confirmed the bid change, allowing the reduction portion for 
overruns. 
 
 Mr. Terry Tomer requested the Council to consider public comments and questions after 
the motions and Council discussions. 
 
 Commissioner McKenzie seconded by Commissioner Ervin moved to adopt Ordinance 
2009-5274, approving the placement of a stop sign on the corner of Marion and 28th Street. 
 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 

CITY OF MATTOON, ILLINOIS 
ORDINANCE NO.  2009-5274 

 
AN ORDINANCE DIRECTING THAT THE INTERSECTION OF  
MARION AVENUE AND SOUTH 28TH STREET BE CHANGED  

FROM STOPPING MARION AVENUE TRAFFIC  
TO STOPPING SOUTH 28TH STREET TRAFFIC  

 
WHEREAS, the City of Mattoon’s Public Works Department has completed a 

traffic study for the intersection of 28th Street and Marion Avenue, in accordance with City 
Ordinance No. 2003-5172; and, 

 
WHEREAS, City Ordinance No 2003-5172 states the City of Mattoon shall 

follow the standards and guidance contained in the most recent Manual for Uniform Traffic 
Control Devices; and, 

 
WHEREAS, that manual states that for two-way stop intersections the lower 

volume street should stop at the higher volume street; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the traffic study shows that at the intersection Marion Avenue and 

28th Street Marion Avenue has the higher traffic volume. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
MATTOON, COLES COUNTY, ILLINOIS, AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 Section 1. The following sections of Schedule III of Chapter 74 of the City of Mattoon 
Code of Ordinances are hereby repealed: 
 
(A) Where Stop Signs control the right of way at an Intersection. 



 
4) The following intersections are two-way stop intersections: 

 

Marion Avenue stops approaching 28th Street 

 
 

Section 2. Schedule III of Chapter 74 of the City of Mattoon Code of Ordinances is hereby 
amended as follows: 
 

(A) Where Stop Signs control the right of way at an Intersection. 
 
4) The following intersections are two-way stop intersections: 

 

28th Street stops approaching Marion Avenue 

 
Section 3. This ordinance shall be deemed published as of the day of its adoption and approval 
by the City Council.  
 
Section 4. This ordinance shall be effective upon its approval as provided by law. 
 
Upon motion by Commissioner McKenzie, seconded by Commissioner Ervin, adopted this 17th 
day of March, 2009, by a roll call vote, as follows: 
 
AYES (Names):   Commissioner Ervin, Commissioner Hall,  
        Commissioner McKenzie, Commissioner Schilling, 
        Mayor Cline 
NAYS (Names):  None 
ABSENT (Names):     None 
      
Approved this 17th day of March, 2009. 
      /s/ David W. Cline 
      David W. Cline, Mayor 
      City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois  
 
ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
/s/ Susan J. O’Brien    /s/ J. Preston Owen 
Susan J. O’Brien, City Clerk    J. Preston Owen, City Attorney 
 
Recorded in the Municipality’s Records on March 18, 2009 
 
 Mayor Cline called for comments or questions.  Attorney & Treasurer Owen stated the 
removal of the stop sign at Marion Avenue and the placement of the sign on 28th Street. 
 
 Mayor Cline declared the motion carried by the following vote:  YEA Commissioner 
Ervin, YEA Commissioner Hall, YEA Commissioner McKenzie, YEA Commissioner Schilling, 
YEA Mayor Cline.  
 
 
 Mayor Cline seconded by Commissioner Hall moved to adopt Special Ordinance 2009-
1323, adopting higher fees for copies of various documents and services provided by the Office 
of the City Clerk, Water Plant Laboratory, and Police Department.  



 

 
CITY OF MATTOON, ILLINOIS 

 
SPECIAL ORDINANCE NO. 2009-1323 

 
AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING HIGHER FEES FOR COPIES OF VARIOUS 

DOCUMENTS AND SERVICES PROVIDED BY THE OFFICE OF THE CITY CLERK, 
THE WATER PLANT LABORATORY AND THE POLICE DEPARTMENT 

  
WHEREAS, user charges based upon the cost of providing services for specialized beneficiaries 
of those services is a fiscal policy objective of the City Council;  
 
WHEREAS, fees for copies of various documents and services provided by the City of Mattoon 
are lower than other local governments in Central Illinois; and 
 
WHEREAS, State of Illinois mandates for implementation of the Illinois Vital Records System 
has caused additional expenditures in providing certifications of death. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Mattoon as 
follows: 
 
Section 1.  Birth and Death Certificates. Fees assessed for birth certificates are $10.00 for the 
first copy and $2.00 for each additional copy. Fees for death certificates are $16.00 for the first 
copy and $6.00 for each additional copy, including the $2.00 fee remitted to the Illinois 
Department of Vital Records as mandated by Public Act 92-0141.  External corrections of death 
certificates are assessed an additional $4.00 fee for the correction and reprinting purposes. 
 
Section 2.  Water Plant Laboratory Fees. Fees assessed for fecal coliform tests provided by 
the Water Plant Laboratory are $15.00 each.  
 
Section 3.  Police Department Services. Fees and charges for copies of various documents and 
services provided by the Police Department are hereby established as displayed on Exhibit A to 
this ordinance, a copy of which is attached and incorporated herein by reference.  
 
Section 4.  Effective Date. Fees established by this ordinance shall become effective upon its 
approval as provided by law  
 
Upon motion by Mayor Cline, seconded by Commissioner Hall, adopted this 17th day of March, 
2009, by a roll call vote, as follows: 
 
AYES (Names):   Commissioner Ervin, Commissioner Hall,  
        Commissioner McKenzie, Commissioner Schilling, 
        Mayor Cline 
NAYS (Names):  None 
ABSENT (Names):     None 
      
Approved this 17th day of March, 2009. 
      /s/ David W. Cline 
      David W. Cline, Mayor 
      City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois  



 
ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
/s/ Susan J. O’Brien    /s/ J. Preston Owen 
Susan J. O’Brien, City Clerk    J. Preston Owen, City Attorney 
 
Recorded in the Municipality’s Records on March 18, 2009 
 
 Mayor Cline called for comments or questions.  There was no discussion. 
 
 Mayor Cline declared the motion carried by the following vote:  YEA Commissioner 
Ervin, YEA Commissioner Hall, YEA Commissioner McKenzie, YEA Commissioner Schilling, 
YEA Mayor Cline. 
 
 Commissioner Hall seconded by Commissioner Ervin moved to approve Council 
Decision Request 2009-942, awarding the following Depot bids to Grunloh Construction of 
Effingham; and authorizing the Mayor and City Clerk to execute all necessary documents to 
complete the project:  
 
  Base Bid in the amount of $2,492,000; and 
  Bid Alternate G-1 Masonry Restoration in the amount of $98,000; and  
  Bid Alternate G-2 Window Restoration in the amount of $140,000. 
 
 Mayor Cline called for comments or questions.  There was no discussion. 
 
 Mayor Cline declared the motion carried by the following vote:  YEA Commissioner 
Ervin, YEA Commissioner Hall, YEA Commissioner McKenzie, YEA Commissioner Schilling, 
YEA Mayor Cline.  
 
 Commissioner Hall seconded by Commissioner Schilling moved to approve Council 
Decision Request 2009-943, approving Change Order #1 to Grunloh Construction of Effingham 
in the amount of $382,761 deleting the terrazzo floor repair from the Base Bid reducing the Base 
Bid amount contained in the contract awarded to Grunloh Construction from $2,492,000 to a 
reduced Base Bid of $2,109,239.  
 
 Mayor Cline called for comments or questions.  There was no discussion. 
 
 Mayor Cline declared the motion carried by the following vote:  YEA Commissioner 
Ervin, YEA Commissioner Hall, YEA Commissioner McKenzie, YEA Commissioner Schilling, 
YEA Mayor Cline. 
 
 Commissioner Schilling seconded by Commissioner McKenzie moved to adopt Special 
Ordinance 2009-1324, authorizing the Mayor to sign an outright grant agreement by and between 
the City of Mattoon and Dr. Donald Freesmeier reimbursing up to $80,000 from available Mid-
town TIF revenues over a ten-year term for façade improvements, emergency structural repairs, 
and building code and electrical updates to a building located at 1528 Broadway Avenue.  
 

CITY OF MATTOON, ILLINOIS 
 

SPECIAL ORDINANCE NO. 2009-1324  
 

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A GRANT AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN THE 



CITY OF MATTOON, ILLINOIS AND, DONALD FREESMEIER. IN CONNECTION 
WITH THE MATTOON MID-TOWN REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT AREA 

 
WHEREAS, Donald Freesmeier. (the “Grantee”), has submitted a proposal to the City of 
Mattoon, Illinois (the “Municipality”) for redevelopment of a part of the Municipality’s 
Mattoon Mid-town Redevelopment Project Area (the “Redevelopment Project Area”); and, 
thereafter, the Municipality and the Grantee have engaged in negotiations related to a Grant 
Agreement (including all exhibits and attachments in connection therewith, the “Grant 
Agreement”) concerning redevelopment incentives and assistance related to the preservation, 
development and redevelopment of a part of the Redevelopment Project Area. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
MATTOON, COLES COUNTY, ILLINOIS, as follows: 
 
Section 1.   The Grant Agreement, in substantially the form thereof presented before the meeting 
of the City Council at which this ordinance is adopted, shall be and is hereby ratified, confirmed 
and approved, and the Mayor and City Clerk are authorized to execute and deliver the Grant 
Agreement for and on behalf of the Municipality; and upon the execution thereof by the 
Municipality and the Grantees, the appropriate officers, agents, attorneys and employees of the 
Municipality are authorized to take all supplemental actions, including the execution and 
delivery of related supplemental opinions, certificates, agreements and instruments not 
inconsistent with the Grant Agreement, desirable or necessary to implement and otherwise give 
full effect to the Grant Agreement.  Upon full execution thereof, the Grant Agreement shall be 
attached to this ordinance as EXHIBIT “A”. 
 
Section 2.  This ordinance shall be deemed published as of the day of its adoption and approval 
by the City Council. 
 
Section 3.  This ordinance shall be effective upon its approval as provided by law. 
 
Upon motion by Commissioner Schilling, seconded by Commissioner McKenzie, adopted this 
17th day of March, 2009, by a roll call vote, as follows: 
 
AYES (Names):   Commissioner Ervin, Commissioner Hall,  
       Commissioner McKenzie, Commissioner Schilling, 
       Mayor Cline 
NAYS (Names):  None 
ABSENT (Names):     None 
      
Approved this 17th day of March, 2009. 
      /s/ David W. Cline 
      David W. Cline, Mayor 
      City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois  
 
ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
/s/ Susan J. O’Brien    /s/ J. Preston Owen 
Susan J. O’Brien, City Clerk    J. Preston Owen, City Attorney 
 
Recorded in the Municipality’s Records on March 18, 2009 
 
 Mayor Cline called for comments or questions.  There was no discussion. 



 
 Mayor Cline declared the motion carried by the following vote:  YEA Commissioner 
Ervin, YEA Commissioner Hall, YEA Commissioner McKenzie, YEA Commissioner Schilling, 
YEA Mayor Cline.  
 
 Commissioner Hall seconded by Commissioner McKenzie moved to approve Council 
Decision Request 2009-944, awarding the bid from B&T Drainage & Excavating of Marshall, 
Illinois in the amount of $93,976 for a watermain relocation of US Route 45 and County Road 
1000N Water and Sewer Force Main Improvements.  
 
 Mayor Cline called for comments or questions.  There was no discussion. 
 
 Mayor Cline declared the motion carried by the following vote:  YEA Commissioner 
Ervin, YEA Commissioner Hall, YEA Commissioner McKenzie, YEA Commissioner Schilling, 
YEA Mayor Cline.  
 
 Mayor Cline seconded by Commissioner Schilling moved to recess to closed session at 
6:47 p.m. pursuant to the Illinois Open Meetings Act for the purpose of considering the 
employment, performance or dismissal of employees of the municipality (5 ILCS 120(2)(c)(1)). 
 
 Mayor Cline declared the motion carried by the following vote:  YEA Commissioner 
Ervin, YEA Commissioner Hall, YEA Commissioner McKenzie, YEA Commissioner Schilling, 
YEA Mayor Cline. 
 
 Council reconvened at 7:41 p.m. 
 
 Commissioner Ervin seconded by Commissioner Hall moved to adjourn at 7:41 p.m. 
 
 Mayor Cline declared the motion carried by the following vote:  YEA Commissioner 
Ervin, YEA Commissioner Hall, YEA Commissioner McKenzie, YEA Commissioner Schilling, 
YEA Mayor Cline.  
 
         /s/ Susan J. O’Brien  
         City Clerk  

 



BILLS & PAYROLL: 
 
 
BEGINS ON NEXT PAGE 

 
 



CITY OF MATTOON

3-20-09 PAYROLL

2-28-09/3-13-09

G/L ACCOUNT ACCOUNT NAME AMOUNT

CITY COUNCIL 110 5110-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 1,476.91

CITY CLERK 110 5120-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 4,870.03

110 5120-113 OVERTIME 35.87

110 5120-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 203.45

CITY ADMINISTRATOR 110 5130-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 3,264.31

FINANCIAL ADMINISTRATION 110 5150-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 1,055.49

110 5150-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 142.92

LEGAL SERVICES 110 5160-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 1,068.05

110 5160-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 267.02

COMPUTER INFO SYSTEMS 110 5170-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 3,666.76

110 5170-114 COMPENSATED ABSCENSES 143.31

PLANNING & ZONING 110 5180-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 1,000.21

POLICE ADMINISTRATION 110 5211-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 12,377.62

CRIMINAL INVESTIGATION 110 5212-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 10,105.05

110 5212-113 OVERTIME 433.66

PATROL 110 5213-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 61,830.40

110 5213-113 OVERTIME 2,057.24

K-9 SERVICE 110 5214-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 2,132.89

POLICE RECORDS 110 5216-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 5,800.06

TRAFFIC CONTROL 110 5220-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 418.5

SCHOOL RESOURCE PROGRAM 110 5227-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 1,975.16

FIRE PROTECTION ADMIN 110 5241-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 78,361.74

110 5241-113 OVERTIME 2,429.54

110 5241-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 4,316.45

CODE ENFORCEMENT ADMIN 110 5261-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 4,264.34

110 5261-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 47.69

PUBLIC WORKS ADMIN 110 5310-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 4,759.68

110 5310-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 25.23

STREETS 110 5320-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 15,688.37

110 5320-113 OVERTIME 47.48

110 5320-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 1,911.22

YARD WASTE COLLECTION 110 5335-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 4,360.99

110 5335-113 OVERTIME 17.87

CONSTRUCTION INSPECTION 110 5370-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 1,950.79

110 5370-112 SALARIES OF TEMP. EMPLOYEES 1,241.68

110 5370-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 168.02

CUSTODIAL SERVICES 110 5381-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 2,322.25

110 5381-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 138.9

EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 110 5390-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 1,400.38

110 5390-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 381.12

PARK ADMINISTRATION 110 5511-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 7,136.84

LAKE ADMINISTRATION 110 5512-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 1,949.09

110 5512-112 SALARIES OF TEMP EMPLOYEES 544

*** FUND 110 TOTALS *** 247,788.58



CITY OF MATTOON

3-20-09 PAYROLL

2-28-09/3-13-09

HOTEL TAX ADMINISTRATION 122 5653-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 1,537.18

122 5653-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 80.9

*** FUND 122 TOTALS *** 1,618.08

WATER TREATMENT PLANT 211 5353-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 11,442.86

211 5353-113 OVERTIME 549.31

211 5353-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 523.9

WATER DISTRIBUTION 211 5354-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 10,062.03

211 5354-113 OVERTIME 77.9

211 5354-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 1,709.09

ACCOUNTING & COLLECTION 211 5355-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 5,011.47

211 5355-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 256.87

ADMINISTRATIVE & GENERAL 211 5356-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 4,107.61

211 5356-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 24.48

*** FUND 211 TOTALS *** 33,765.52

SANITARY SWR MTCE & CLEAN 212 5342-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 7,061.50

212 5342-113 OVERTIME 261.41

212 5342-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 785.14

WASTEWATER TREATMNT PLANT 212 5344-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 11,586.09

212 5344-113 OVERTIME 427.25

212 5344-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 737.34

ACCOUNTING & COLLECTION 212 5345-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 4,966.56

212 5345-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 256.88

ADMINISTRATIVE & GENERAL 212 5346-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 4,107.62

212 5346-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 24.48

*** FUND 212 TOTALS *** 30,214.27

MAINTENANCE & OPERATIONS 213 5361-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 2,981.12

213 5361-112 SALARIES OF TEMP EMPLOYEES 700

213 5361-113 OVERTIME 127.76

*** FUND 213 TOTALS *** 3,808.88

*** GRAND TOTALS *** 317,195.33



CITY OF MATTOON

3-20-09 PAYROLL

2-28-09/3-13-09

*** PAY CODE TOTALS ***

PAY CODE NO OF TIMES              HOURS AMOUNT

REGULAR PAY 20 1,936.00 41,447.55

SALARY PAY 38 11,538.97 254,567.59

HOLIDAY PAY-REGULAR 20 99.72 2,034.53

SHIFT PAY 2 160 112

PEHP 27 27 437.5

VACATION PAY 13 164.5 3,617.63

OVERTIME PAY 26 195.5 6,309.75

SICK-FD UNION 5 110.75 2,247.59

COMP PAID 1 25 553.22

SICK PAY-AFSCME 7 129 2,919.29

SICK-NON UNION 6 46.5 1,382.62

COMP EARNED 15 15 0

SHIFT PAY 1 252 151.2

STRAIGHT OT POLICE 6 6 155.54

BURIAL PAY 1 4 301

BACK PAY 1 1 958.32



CITY OF MATTOON

4-3-09

3-14-09/3-28-09

G/L ACCOUNT ACCOUNT NAME AMOUNT

CITY COUNCIL 110 5110-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 1,476.91

CITY CLERK 110 5120-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 4,678.20

110 5120-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 395.28

CITY ADMINISTRATOR 110 5130-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 1,611.75

110 5130-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 1,652.56

FINANCIAL ADMINISTRATION 110 5150-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 962.21

110 5150-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 236.2

LEGAL SERVICES 110 5160-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 1,001.30

110 5160-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 333.77

COMPUTER INFO SYSTEMS 110 5170-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 3,810.07

PLANNING & ZONING 110 5180-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 906.13

110 5180-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 94.08

POLICE ADMINISTRATION 110 5211-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 12,377.62

CRIMINAL INVESTIGATION 110 5212-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 10,105.05

110 5212-113 OVERTIME 83.69

PATROL 110 5213-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 61,920.66

110 5213-113 OVERTIME 1,868.42

K-9 SERVICE 110 5214-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 2,132.89

POLICE RECORDS 110 5216-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 5,800.06

TRAFFIC CONTROL 110 5220-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 449.5

SCHOOL RESOURCE PROGRAM 110 5227-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 1,975.16

FIRE PROTECTION ADMIN 110 5241-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 74,665.51

110 5241-113 OVERTIME 1,493.73

110 5241-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 8,012.68

CODE ENFORCEMENT ADMIN 110 5261-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 4,098.91

110 5261-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 213.12

PUBLIC WORKS ADMIN 110 5310-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 4,011.23

110 5310-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 773.68

STREETS 110 5320-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 13,116.64

110 5320-113 OVERTIME 48.54

110 5320-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 1,336.97

YARD WASTE COLLECTION 110 5335-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 4,736.81

110 5335-112 SALARIES OF TEMP EMPLOYEES 320

110 5335-113 OVERTIME 267.22

CONSTRUCTION INSPECTION 110 5370-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 1,925.12

110 5370-112 SALARIES OF TEMP. EMPLOYEES 1,307.03

110 5370-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 128.34

CUSTODIAL SERVICES 110 5381-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 2,461.15

EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 110 5390-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 1,595.67

110 5390-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 47.64

PARK ADMINISTRATION 110 5511-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 6,797.91

110 5511-113 OVERTIME 314.56

110 5511-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 338.93

LAKE ADMINISTRATION 110 5512-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 1,105.79

110 5512-112 SALARIES OF TEMP EMPLOYEES 1,249.50

110 5512-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 843.3

*** FUND 110 TOTALS *** 245,081.49



CITY OF MATTOON

4-3-09

3-14-09/3-28-09

HOTEL TAX ADMINISTRATION 122 5653-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 1,456.28

122 5653-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 161.8

*** FUND 122 TOTALS *** 1,618.08

WATER TREATMENT PLANT 211 5353-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 10,970.44

211 5353-113 OVERTIME 505.08

211 5353-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 996.32

WATER DISTRIBUTION 211 5354-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 8,327.78

211 5354-113 OVERTIME 75.15

211 5354-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 540.48

ACCOUNTING & COLLECTION 211 5355-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 3,582.98

211 5355-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 778.83

ADMINISTRATIVE & GENERAL 211 5356-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 3,399.02

211 5356-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 733.08

*** FUND 211 TOTALS *** 29,909.16

SANITARY SWR MTCE & CLEAN 212 5342-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 12,258.57

212 5342-113 OVERTIME 219.34

212 5342-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 2,616.68

WASTEWATER TREATMNT PLANT 212 5344-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 11,105.36

212 5344-113 OVERTIME 233.04

212 5344-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 1,194.67

ACCOUNTING & COLLECTION 212 5345-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 3,298.94

212 5345-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 778.83

ADMINISTRATIVE & GENERAL 212 5346-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 3,399.01

212 5346-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 733.08

*** FUND 212 TOTALS *** 35,837.52

MAINTENANCE & OPERATIONS 213 5361-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 2,739.15

213 5361-112 SALARIES OF TEMP EMPLOYEES 1,058.00

213 5361-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 7.97

*** FUND 213 TOTALS *** 3,805.12

*** GRAND TOTALS *** 316,251.37



CITY OF MATTOON

4-3-09

3-14-09/3-28-09

*** PAY CODE TOTALS ***

PAY CODE NO OF TIMES              HOURS AMOUNT

REGULAR PAY 20 2,128.00 43,313.64

SICK PAY-AFSCME 7 124.5 2,783.83

SALARY PAY 30 11,091.97 243,728.64

VACATION PAY 23 436.5 11,196.19

HOL PAY-REGULAR 22 99.72 2,034.53

SICK-FD UNIOON 10 264 5,293.06

SHIFT PAY 160 160 112

PEHP 28 28 437.5

OVERTIME PAY 22 154.75 5,025.08

COMP EARNED 16.5 16.5 0

COMP PAID 16 16 350.48

SICK-NON UNION 8 58.75 1,697.93

SHIFT PAY 1 213 127.8

STRAIGHT OT POLICE 1 3 83.69

BURIAL PAY 1 1 67



































 3-20-2009 12:38 PM                               REFUND CHECK REGISTER                                                  PAGE:    1

Packet: 14311 - Refunds From Zone zz                                                                 G/L POSTING DATE:  3/20/2009

 

                                                                                        ----------DEPOSIT----------

---ACCOUNT---- ------------NAME----------- --DATE-- ----TYPE----- -CK #- ----AMOUNT---- CODE -RECEIPT-- --AMOUNT--- ----MESSAGE-----

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-17410-15     HILLS, DANNY R              3/20/09 FINAL BILL     97439        18.61CR  100 34241          60.00CR

03-12410-08     SMITH, FRANCES E            3/20/09 FINAL BILL     97440         2.35CR  100 34041          60.00CR

07-18110-06     HANSEN, ERIC T              3/20/09 FINAL BILL     97441        14.49CR  000                 0.00

22-23410-12     GRIJALVA, TOMAS             3/20/09 FINAL BILL     97442        16.15CR  100 34131          60.00CR

29-07100-03     WHITE, THOMAS               3/20/09 FINAL BILL     97443        98.68CR  100 27085          60.00CR

33-68000-02     STEVENS, JAMES E            3/20/09 FINAL BILL     97444        15.46CR  100 31630          60.00CR

41-01100-13     BRANDENBURG, JASON A        3/20/09 FINAL BILL     97445        39.72CR  100 32513          60.00CR

41-02600-15     CRAMER, JORDAN D            3/20/09 FINAL BILL     97446        43.76CR  100 34205          60.00CR



 3-27-2009  9:18 AM                               REFUND CHECK REGISTER                                                  PAGE:    1

Packet: 14407 - Refunds From Zone zz                                                                 G/L POSTING DATE:  3/27/2009

 

                                                                                        ----------DEPOSIT----------

---ACCOUNT---- ------------NAME----------- --DATE-- ----TYPE----- -CK #- ----AMOUNT---- CODE -RECEIPT-- --AMOUNT--- ----MESSAGE-----

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-20700-12     ZIMMER PROPERTIES           3/27/09 FINAL BILL     97481         4.04CR  000                 0.00

03-08900-09     KIRK, LUTICIA N             3/27/09 FINAL BILL     97482        28.06CR  100 33472          60.00CR

08-19600-03     VITRAN EXPRESS INC          3/27/09 FINAL BILL     97483        60.09CR  100 27774         100.00CR

13-15600-05     THOMAS, MADONNA L           3/27/09 FINAL BILL     97484         1.27CR  100 33155          60.00CR

14-14210-11     CLINTON, AARON L            3/27/09 FINAL BILL     97485        31.72CR  100 29070          60.00CR



NEW BUSINESS: 
 

City of Mattoon 
Council Decision Request 

MEETING DATE:    04/07/09            CDR NO: 2009-945               
 
SUBJECT: Authorize the Mayor and the Police Chief’s designee to apply for ICJIA Grant for 
one police car 
 
SUBMITTAL DATE:     03/31/09 
 
SUBMITTED BY:    David Griffith, Chief of Police, Mattoon Police Dept. 
 
APPROVED FOR        Alan Gilmore   _____________________ 
COUNCIL AGENDA:      City Administrator       Date 
 
EXHIBITS (If applicable):  
                                                                                                                                  

EXPENDITURE                        AMOUNT              CONTINGENCY FUNDING 
ESTIMATE: $4,129.00                  BUDGETED: None   REQUIRED:   $4,129.00 

 
IF IT IS THE WISH OF THE COUNCIL TO SUPPORT RECOMMENDATIONS 
CONTAINED IN THIS REPORT, THE FOLLOWING MOTION IS SUGGESTED: 
 

“I move that the City Council authorize the Mayor and the Police Chief’s designee to 
apply for an FFY 2006 Justice Assistance Grant through the Illinois Criminal Justice 
Information Authority for one vehicle to be used by the Mattoon Police Dept.; said grant 
requiring a 25% local match which amount is $4,129.00.” 

 
SUMMARY OF THE TOPIC FOR WHICH A COUNCIL DECISION IS REQUESTED: 
 

The Illinois Criminal Justice Information Authority has recently announced that funding 
is available under the FFY 2006 Justice Assistance Grant Program for vehicles for use by local 
police departments.  Agencies with populations less than 25,000 requesting to purchase non-
hybrid vehicles are eligible for up to $18,000 in grant funds and for hybrid vehicles up to 
$25,000.  The grant application requires 25% in local matching funds. 
 

The Mattoon Police Dept. Detective Section currently has one 1998 Chevy Malibu with 
nearly 74,000 miles which is in need of replacement with a newer Administrative Vehicle.  Chief 
David Griffith recommends that one 2009 unmarked non-hybrid passenger car be purchased at 
the State of Illinois Contract Bid Price of $16,517.00 to replace the aging 1998 Chevy. 
 

The FFY2006 Justice Assistance Grant would provide 75% of the funds ($12,388) and 
the Mattoon Police Department’s budget would provide 25% ($4,129) for this purchase. 
 

Chief David Griffith requests permission to apply for this grant funding for said purpose. 
 



City of Mattoon 
Council Decision Request 

MEETING DATE: 4/7/2009  CDR NO: 2009-946         
 
SUBJECT:  Accepting a quote for labor to bore an 8-inch water main on 

Marshall Ave.  
 
SUBMITTAL DATE:  4/3/2009 
 
SUBMITTED BY: David Wortman, Public Works Director 
 
EXHIBITS (If applicable):  
           

EXPENDITURE   AMOUNT   CONTINGENCY FUNDING 
ESTIMATE: $ 11,218.50      BUDGETED: $ 6,000  REQUIRED: $5,218.50 

 
IF IT IS THE WISH OF THE COUNCIL TO SUPPORT RECOMMENDATIONS 
CONTAINED IN THIS REPORT, THE FOLLOWING MOTION IS SUGGESTED: 

 
“I recommend accepting a quote from Fuller-Wente, Inc for $11,218.50 

for the labor to bore 810 feet of watermain on Marshall Avenue.” 
 

SUMMARY OF THE TOPIC FOR WHICH A COUNCIL DECISION IS REQUESTED: 
 
This project is to improve the water flows and pressure on Marshall Avenue near United 
Graphics. Representatives from United Graphics have contacted me several times in the past year 
and have told me that there is poor pressure at their plant which is affecting their insurance cost.  
 
This project is one half of a larger effort to upgrade the water system on Marshall to help with 
the pressure and flow in the area. We have also connected the “West End Loop” 12-inch 
waterline that was installed in 2004 to the 8-inch line on the north side of Marshall at Park Street. 
We believe these two projects together will improve the fire flows in the area. 
 
To complete the project city staff requested quotes from three local contractors who have the 
capability to bore an 8-inch water main. We received the following quotes in February. 
 

Chemical Total Price 
Fuller-Wente  $       11,218.50  

Laster Custom Underground  $       15,168.75 

Gardner Excavating  $       16,058.65  

 
The actual quotes are available in the public works office. 
 
The boring will be paid from line Water Distribution – Other Repair and Maintenance Services 
(211-5354-439). While there is only $6,000 in this line item we have under spent in other line 
items in Water Distribution so the subtotal for the portion of the budget will not be over the 
budgeted amount. 
 



City of Mattoon 
Council Decision Request 

MEETING DATE: 4/7/09  CDR NO: 2009-947   
 
SUBJECT:  Plans and Specifications for Roundhouse Multi-Sports Complex 

Project (IDNR OSLAD Grant Project)  
 
SUBMITTAL DATE:  3/25/09 
 
SUBMITTED BY: David Wortman, Public Works Director 
 
APPROVED FOR  Alan Gilmore    _________________ 
COUNCIL AGENDA: City Administrator   Date 

 
EXHIBITS (If applicable): Bid documents and plans are available in the Public Works Office 
             

CITY EXPENDITURE  AMOUNT   CONTINGENCY FUNDING 
ESTIMATE: N/A  BUDGETED: $800,000 REQUIRED: N/A 

 
IF IT IS THE WISH OF THE COUNCIL TO SUPPORT RECOMMENDATIONS 
CONTAINED IN THIS REPORT, THE FOLLOWING MOTION IS SUGGESTED: 
 

“I move to approve the plans and specifications and authorize the advertisement  
for bids for the Roundhouse Multi-Sports Complex Project.” 

 

SUMMARY OF THE TOPIC FOR WHICH A COUNCIL DECISION IS REQUESTED: 
  
The Roundhouse Multi-Sports Complex Project includes the construction of six soccer fields, a 
skate park, an extension of the bike trail, and green parking lots as shown on the map on the 
following two pages. The city has received a 50 percent grant from the Illinois Department of 
Natural Resources for the improvements. The city funding will be from the Capital Improvement 
fund. 
 
Approving this CDR will authorize the public works staff to advertise and receive bids for the 
project. The bids will be opened on April 23rd in the council chambers. 
 
The work to be completed under this contract is as follows: 

1) 4,600 feet of ten-foot wide walking/bike trail 
2) concrete entrances to parking areas and concrete slab for the skate park 
3) earthwork for soccer fields, parking areas and ditches 
4) 46,000 square feet of green parking between the T-ball fields and the new soccer 

fields 
5) seeding of the soccer fields and green parking area 
 

The skate park equipment and soccer field equipment is not included in this contract. 
 
The plans and specification are available for inspection in the public works department office on 
the second floor of city hall. 
 



City of Mattoon 
Council Decision Request 

MEETING DATE: 4/7/09  CDR NO: 2009-948   
 
SUBJECT:  Plans and Specifications for South Side Storm Water Detention 

Basin construction project 
 
SUBMITTAL DATE:  3/25/09 
 
SUBMITTED BY: David Wortman, Public Works Director 
 
APPROVED FOR  Alan Gilmore    _________________ 
COUNCIL AGENDA: City Administrator   Date 

 
EXHIBITS (If applicable): Bid documents and plans are available in the Public Works Office 
             

CITY EXPENDITURE  AMOUNT   CONTINGENCY FUNDING 
ESTIMATE: N/A  BUDGETED: $3,000,000 REQUIRED: N/A 

 
IF IT IS THE WISH OF THE COUNCIL TO SUPPORT RECOMMENDATIONS 
CONTAINED IN THIS REPORT, THE FOLLOWING MOTION IS SUGGESTED: 
 

“I move to approve the plans and specifications and authorize the advertisement  
for bids for the South Side Storm Water Detention Basin construction project.” 

 

SUMMARY OF THE TOPIC FOR WHICH A COUNCIL DECISION IS REQUESTED: 
  
Approving this CDR will allow us to proceed with the advertizing for bids for the construction of 
the storm water detention basin between Stinson Avenue and Old State Road. The project is in 
the Capital Improvements Fund which is funded by the 1/4 percent sales tax.  
 
Upchurch and Associates have completed the plans for the project. The plan calls for the 
construction of a berm varying from ten-feet high on the north end tapering to zero feet on the 
south end creating a rectangular basin which will receive water from the 14th Street tributary and 
the route 45 tributary. The basin will be 37 acres in area with a volume of 170 acre-feet. 
 
Approving this CDR will authorize the public works staff to advertise and receive bids for the 
project. The bids will be opened on April 23rd in the council chambers. 
 
The plans and specification are available for inspection in the public works department office on 
the second floor of city hall. 
 
 



City of Mattoon 
Council Decision Request 

MEETING DATE: 4/7/09  CDR NO: 2009-949   
 
SUBJECT:  Plans and Specifications for two separate contracts for sidewalk 

removal and replacement on Broadway Avenue and Western 
Avenue 

 
SUBMITTAL DATE:  3/25/09 
 
SUBMITTED BY: David Wortman, Public Works Director 
 
APPROVED FOR  Alan Gilmore    _________________ 
COUNCIL AGENDA: City Administrator   Date 

 
EXHIBITS (If applicable): Bid documents and plans are available in the Public Works Office 
             

CITY EXPENDITURE  AMOUNT   CONTINGENCY FUNDING 
ESTIMATE: N/A  BUDGETED: $500,000 REQUIRED: N/A 

 
IF IT IS THE WISH OF THE COUNCIL TO SUPPORT RECOMMENDATIONS 
CONTAINED IN THIS REPORT, THE FOLLOWING MOTION IS SUGGESTED: 
 

“I move to approve the plans and specifications and authorize the advertisement  
for bids for two separate contracts for sidewalk removal and replacement  

along Broadway Avenue and Western Avenue.” 
 

SUMMARY OF THE TOPIC FOR WHICH A COUNCIL DECISION IS REQUESTED: 
  
Approving this CDR will allow us to proceed with the advertizing for bids two separate contracts 
for sidewalk removal and replacement on Broadway Avenue from 14th Street to Peterson Park 
and Western Avenue from 27th Street to 43rd Street. The plan is to replace any sidewalk that is 
damaged and to make all intersections ADA compliant. Sections of sidewalk that are in 
acceptable condition will remain in place. 
 
There is $500,000 for sidewalk replacement in the Capital Improvements Fund budget which is 
funded by the 1/4 percent sales tax. Our plan is to do these two contracts presently and follow up 
with further contracts later along other routes identified in the Walkable Community plan as 
shown on the reverse side of this sheet. 
 
Approving this CDR will authorize the public works staff to advertise and receive bids for the 
project. The bids will be opened on April 23rd in the council chambers. 
 
The plans and specification are available for inspection in the public works department office on 
the second floor of city hall. 



City of Mattoon 
Council Decision Request 

MEETING DATE: 4/7/09  CDR NO: 2009-950         
 
SUBJECT:    2009 Water Treatment Plant Chemical Bids 
 
SUBMITTAL DATE:  3/27/09 
 
SUBMITTED BY: David Wortman, Public Works Director 
 
EXHIBITS (If applicable): Bid Tabulation Sheet 
    Bidder List 
           

EXPENDITURE        AMOUNT 2009  CONTINGENCY FUNDING 
ESTIMATE: $141,137.50      BUDGETED: $320,000 REQUIRED: N/A 

 
IF IT IS THE WISH OF THE COUNCIL TO SUPPORT RECOMMENDATIONS 
CONTAINED IN THIS REPORT, THE FOLLOWING MOTION IS SUGGESTED: 

 
“I recommend accepting the bids from the listed suppliers for the purchase of various 

chemicals for water treatment over the next twelve months.” 
 

SUMMARY OF THE TOPIC FOR WHICH A COUNCIL DECISION IS REQUESTED: 
 
The City received bids for water treatment chemicals on March 18th, 2009.  
 
The low bidder for each group is listed below.  
 

Chemical Supplier Unit Price 
($/lbs) 

Total Price 

CO2 Continental 
Carbonic 0.0465  $       9,300.00  

Carbon Alexander 
Chemical 0.7400  $     44,400.00  

Polymer SAL Chemical 0.7160  $     21,480.00  

Chlorine Brenntag 0.1995  $       6,982.50  

Fluoride Brentag 0.4600  $     18,400.00  

Ammonia Water Soln Unlimt 0.6000  $     18,000.00  

Polyphosphate 
blend Carus Chemicals 0.7900  $     22,575.00  

   TOTAL  $141,137.50  

 
The public works advisory board recommended accepting the bids listed above. They recommended not 
to immediately accept the bid we received for alum. The lowest bid for alum increased from $0.1397/lb 
last year to $0.2272/lb this year, an increase of 63%. The board requested that Jim Lang contact the 
bidders to discuss the reason for the increase to decide whether to accept this bid or to possibly rebid for a 
six month period. 



City of Mattoon 
Council Decision Request 

MEETING DATE: 4/7/09       CDR NO: 2009-951   SUBJECT: 
                                                                                        Exhaust Removal Systems  
SUBMITTAL DATE: 4/1/09  
 
SUBMITTED BY: Michael L. Chism; Fire Chief 
 
APPROVED FOR  Alan Gilmore       
COUNCIL AGENDA: City Administrator   Date 

 
EXHIBITS (If applicable): Specifications and Bidding Requirements    

        

EXPENDITURE   AMOUNT   CONTINGENCY FUNDING 
ESTIMATE:      $74,634.00  BUDGETED:  $74,634.00         REQUIRED:     N/A 

 
IF IT IS THE WISH OF THE COUNCIL TO SUPPORT RECOMMENDATIONS 
CONTAINED IN THIS REPORT, THE FOLLOWING MOTION IS SUGGESTED: 
 
“I move to approve the Proposal for Bids for an Exhaust Removal Systems for City Fire Stations. 
This will be paid for with a grant from the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA). 
The approved project costs total is $74,634.00. The Federal share is 95 percent the City of 
Mattoon share is 5 percent and estimate to be less than $3,000. 
 
SUMMARY OF THE TOPIC FOR WHICH A COUNCIL DECISION IS REQUESTED: 
 
The City of Mattoon, Illinois Fire Department is requesting sealed bid proposals from approved 
vendors for the purchase of exhaust removal systems to be installed at all three Mattoon Fire 
Department fire stations. This system will allow the firefighters to maintain the fire trucks during 
inclimate weather without being exposed to hazardous exhaust fumes.  The Coles County Airport 
Authority will be paying the grant match amount on Fire Station #2.  Bid specifications are 
available from the City Clerk’s Office, located at 208 North 19th Street, Mattoon, IL 61938.  Bids 
must be sealed and marked “Exhaust Removal System” and addressed to Mike Chism.  Bids 
must be submitted to the City Clerk’s Office no later than 10:00 A.M. local time, April 28, 2009.  
At the aforestated time and place all bids will be opened and read aloud.  The City of Mattoon 
reserves the right to waive any technicalities and to reject or refuse any and all bids. 



Proposal for Bids 
 

The City of Mattoon, Illinois Fire Department is requesting sealed bid proposals from approved 
vendors for the purchase of exhaust removal systems to be installed at all three Mattoon Fire 
Department fire stations. Bid specifications are available from the City Clerk’s Office, located at 
208 North 19th Street, Mattoon, IL 61938.  Bids must be sealed and marked “Exhaust Removal 
System” and addressed to Mike Chism.  Bids must be submitted to the City Clerk’s Office no 
later than 10:00 A.M. local time, April 28, 2009.  At the aforestated time and place all bids will 
be opened and read aloud.  The City of Mattoon reserves the right to waive any technicalities and 
to reject or refuse any and all bids. 
 
Mike Chism 
Mattoon Fire Chief 
(217) 234-2442 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Instructions to Proposers 

 
The enclosed specifications are generic and are not meant to replicate a specific manufacturer’s 
product.  It is the goal of the Mattoon Fire Department to purchase an exhaust removal system 
for each of the three Mattoon Fire Stations and that the systems meet or exceed the specifications 
outlined herein.  If your company is unable to meet the exact specifications an exclusion sheet 
must be provided that lists any and all deficiencies.  All bids must include both the cost of the 
material and the labor to install the complete exhaust removal system. 
While price is a determining factor, it will not be the only factor in making a final selection.  The 
Mattoon Fire Department reserves the right to reject any and all bids.  It is the intention of the 
Mattoon Fire Department to purchase and have the exhaust systems fully installed and 
operational by August 4, 2009.  Proposers requiring additional information should contact Mike 
Chism, Fire Chief, at 217-234-2442. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

 

 

 

Minimum Specifications 

Exhaust Removal Systems for City Fire Stations 
 
I.  Intent and Purpose 
The general intent and purpose of the Mattoon Fire Department in soliciting bids is to provide an 
exhaust removal system for each city fire station to facilitate the removal of harmful exhaust 
gases that are emitted from department vehicles when their engines are running in preparation to 
respond to an emergency call, for training, or general maintenance.  Proposals for apparatus-
based filter systems or non-tailpipe capture systems will NOT be accepted. 
 
II. System Specifications 
 

A. Tailpipe Capture  - the exhaust removal system (herein after referred to as “the system”) 
must capture exhaust gases and particulates by a hose attachment located at the tailpipe of 
the vehicle.  The actual “bell” or circular piece that will come in contact with the tailpipe 
must be larger than the tailpipe itself and allow for the introduction of ambient air into the 
removal system.  This air will be exhausted through hoses and ductwork to the exterior of 
the building.  The inside of the bell must contain a stop in the form of metal slates or a 
metal screen that will not allow the tailpipe to be shoved too far back into the bell. 
 

B. Rigid Hose Connection – the final 3 to 5 foot length of hose that will connect with the 
tailpipe must be rigid enough to allow for attachment of the bell to the tailpipe without 
requiring personnel to bend over to make the final connection. 
 

C. Method of Connection to Apparatus – the hose attachment will have an electro-
magnetic means of attachment to the side of a fire truck.  The “magnetic plate” will be 
mounted on the outside of the fire truck and will be located between 2 and 4 feet above 
the bell intake of the system located at the tailpipe. 
 

D. Disconnection Switch – there must be a disconnection switch located on the rigid section 
of hose that connects to the tailpipe.  This switch must be accessible by fire personnel 
when they are in a standing position.  Personnel must not be required to bend over to 
connect or disconnect the bell from the tailpipe. 
 

E. Single Vertically Oriented Hose for Each Drop  - a single hose that drops in a nearly 
straight vertical plane from the horizontally mounted accordion hose must be supplied at 
the tailpipe for each vehicle to be connected to the system.  This hose will not contain any 
looping or drooping hoses. 
 

F. Accordion Hose  - a horizontally oriented  “accordion” style hose will be provided and 
attached to the vertically oriented drop hose for each connection.  This hose will expand 



and retract in a horizontal plane and will be mounted near the ceiling of the fire station.  
This hose must allow for movement of fire vehicles when the drop hose is attached to 
vehicles that are exiting or entering station bays.  This hose must also be durable enough 
to remain operational after years of service and thousands of uses. 
 

G. Track System – a horizontally oriented track system will be provided that will allow the 
accordion hose to expand and contract in a straight or nearly straight line of travel.  This 
track system will be mounted to the ceiling of the fire station. 
 

H. Balancer – a balancer mechanism will be provided that will connect to the track 
assembly that will keep the vertical drop hose and bell suspended off the floor when not 
connected to fire vehicles. 
 

I. Trolley – an aluminum extraction trolley will be part of the system.  This trolley will be 
the component that travels in the track and carries and supports the vertical hose 
assembly, balancer and disconnection box.  
 

J. Duct work – all ductwork other than the previously mentioned accordion hose and drop 
hose will be made of metal and have a service life of a minimum of 25 years.  This 
ductwork must be installed as close to vehicle bay ceilings as is feasible.  If any ceiling 
obstructions currently in place must be moved or altered, the cost of this will be borne by 
the successful bidding company at the original bid price.  In addition, the final route of 
the ductwork must be approved by the Mattoon Fire Department Chief or his designee. 
 

K. Exhaust Fan – the exhaust fan for the removal system must be mounted on the exterior 
of all 3 fire stations.  This fan shall be mounted on either an outside wall or on the roof of 
the fire stations.  The exact location must be approved by the Mattoon Fire Department 
Chief or his designee.  This fan must be rated for a service life of 25 years. 
 

L. Electrical Control Box – the electrical control box for the system must be mounted in 
full view of station personnel.  The exact location must be approved by the Mattoon Fire 
Department Chief or his designee. 
 

M. Fan Activation – the exhaust fan will be triggered to activate by an electronic signal that 
is connected to the ignition components of Mattoon Fire Department vehicles.  This 
electronic signal will NOT be allowed to interfere with station radio traffic. 
 

N. NFPA Standards – the exhaust removal system must meet any and all applicable NFPA 
standards for exhaust removal systems as of the date of installation.    
 

O. Final Schematic of System – a map or drawing of the final proposed system layout for 
each station will be provided and agreed upon by the Mattoon Fire Department Chief or 
his designee before actual installation commences. 
 

P. Installation of System – installation of all systems will be performed in the timeliest 
manner possible by the successful bidder while maintaining the highest standards of 
workmanship.  During installation, all Mattoon Fire Department vehicles must be 
allowed to be parked inside city fire stations no later than 8 pm and for the duration of the 
night; which shall be understood to extend until 7 am the next morning. 
 



Q. Bonding – the contractor or any sub-contractors responsible for installation of the 
exhaust removal systems must provide a performance bond in an amount equivalent to 
100% of the contract value.  
 
  

The Mattoon Fire Department wishes to thank in advance all bidders for their cooperation in 
meeting these specifications. 



City of Mattoon 
Council Decision Request 

MEETING DATE:      4/07/09    CDR NO: 2009-952 SUBJECT: Home Occupation Permit 
 

SUBMITTAL DATE:  4/01/09 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Kyle Gill, Community Development Coordinator 
 
APPROVED FOR   Alan Gilmore    ___________________ 
COUNCIL AGENDA: City Administrator       Date 
 
EXHIBITS (If applicable): Home Occupation Application 
            

EXPENDITURE    AMOUNT  CONTINGENCY FUNDING 
ESTIMATE:       N/A  BUDGETED:       N/A REQUIRED:     N/A 

 
IF IT IS THE WISH OF THE COUNCIL TO SUPPORT RECOMMENDATIONS 
CONTAINED IN THIS REPORT, THE FOLLOWING MOTION IS SUGGESTED: 
 

“I move to approve a home occupation application and to authorize the mayor to sign a 
permit to enable a single station styling salon, at 704 Oklahoma Avenue by Dusty 

Arthur.” 
 
SUMMARY OF THE TOPIC FOR WHICH A COUNCIL DECISION IS REQUESTED: 
 
The Building Inspection Office received an application for a home occupation permit for a single 
station styling salon business at 704 Oklahoma Avenue.  The owner of the property is Dusty 
Arthur. Mrs. Arthur is proposing to use a portion of her residence for the use of a styling salon 
business.  She states that there is plenty of parking for customers.   

 
The Code Enforcement Office has made an inspection of the property and the property does have 
room for parking of a couple customers at one time.  Mrs. Arthur showed me the area she is 
proposing to use and I don’t feel this would have a negative effect on the neighborhood.  

 
Definition of Home Occupation:   
“Any occupation carried on by a member of the family residing on the premises, in connection 
with which there is used no sign other than a name plate, not more than one (1) square foot in 
area, that will indicate from the exterior that the building is being used in part for any other 
purpose than that of a dwelling; there is kept no stock in trade, no commodity is sold on the 
premises; no person is employed other than a member of the family residing on the premises; and 
no mechanical equipment is used except such as is permissible for domestic, household, or office 
purposes.  Off street parking is available for all vehicles relating to the resident and occupation 
uses.  A permit may be issued if the above requirements are met and approved by the 
Building/Code Official and City Council.” (§159.04, Mattoon Code of Ordinances) 
 
 





City of Mattoon 
Council Decision Request 

MEETING DATE: 4/07/09     CDR NO: 2009-953  SUBJECT: Home Occupation Permit 
 

SUBMITTAL DATE:  4/01/09 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Kyle Gill, Community Development Coordinator 
 
APPROVED FOR   Alan Gilmore    ___________________ 
COUNCIL AGENDA: City Administrator       Date 

 
EXHIBITS (If applicable): Home Occupation Application 

            

EXPENDITURE    AMOUNT  CONTINGENCY FUNDING 
ESTIMATE:       N/A  BUDGETED:       N/A REQUIRED:     N/A 

 
IF IT IS THE WISH OF THE COUNCIL TO SUPPORT RECOMMENDATIONS 
CONTAINED IN THIS REPORT, THE FOLLOWING MOTION IS SUGGESTED: 
 

“I move to approve a home occupation application and to authorize the mayor to sign a 
permit to enable a massage therapy business at 3228 Champaign Avenue by Jennifer M. 

Mast.” 
 
SUMMARY OF THE TOPIC FOR WHICH A COUNCIL DECISION IS REQUESTED: 
 
The Building Inspection Office received an application for a home occupation permit for a 
massage therapy business at 3228 Champaign Avenue.  The owner of the property is Jennifer M. 
Mast.  Mrs. Mast is proposing to use a portion of her residence for the use of massage therapy 
business.  She states that there is plenty of parking for customer and there would be one client at 
a time with 15 minutes or more between scheduled appointments.   

 
The Code Enforcement Office has made an inspection of the property and the property does have 
room for parking of a couple customers at one time.  Mrs. Mast showed me the area she is 
proposing to use and I don’t feel this would have a negative effect on the neighborhood.  

 
Definition of Home Occupation:   
“Any occupation carried on by a member of the family residing on the premises, in connection 
with which there is used no sign other than a name plate, not more than one (1) square foot in 
area, that will indicate from the exterior that the building is being used in part for any other 
purpose than that of a dwelling; there is kept no stock in trade, no commodity is sold on the 
premises; no person is employed other than a member of the family residing on the premises; and 
no mechanical equipment is used except such as is permissible for domestic, household, or office 
purposes.  Off street parking is available for all vehicles relating to the resident and occupation 
uses.  A permit may be issued if the above requirements are met and approved by the 
Building/Code Official and City Council.” (§159.04, Mattoon Code of Ordinances) 
 





City of Mattoon 
Council Decision Request 

MEETING DATE 4/07/2009   CDR NO: 2009-954      SUBJECT: Mid-Town TIF Incentive                        
                                                                                        Review Committee Recommendations 
                       

 
SUBMITTAL DATE:  4/02/2009 
 
SUBMITTED BY:                Alan Gilmore, City Administrator 
 
EXHIBITS (If applicable):   Mid-Town TIF Obligation Spreadsheet   
             

EXPENDITURE FY-2011 AMOUNT    CONTINGENCY FUNDING 
ESTIMATE: $5,327        BUDGETED:  N/A      REQUIRED: $26,637 thru FY 2015      

 
IF IT IS THE WISH OF THE COUNCIL TO SUPPORT RECOMMENDATIONS 
CONTAINED IN THIS REPORT, THE FOLLOWING MOTION IS SUGGESTED: 

 
I Mayor David W. Cline move to approve the recommendation of the Mid-Town 
Incentive Review Committee for the following projects subject to the availability of 
Midtown TIF funds.   

 
SUMMARY OF THE TOPIC FOR WHICH A COUNCIL DECISION IS REQUESTED: 
 
Jan Kroening (J&T Enterprises) dba: Broadway Café; 1626 Broadway Avenue. 
This project involves a $182,534 renovation of the former Knowles Café building located at 1626 
Broadway Avenue. The project will include a new roof and façade renovations.  Code compliance 
improvements will address the need for an ADA compliant Unisex restroom, new ceiling & lights in the 
kitchen area, and two 2 bedroom apartments on the second floor.  The project also calls for extensive 
electrical upgrades to the entire building.   
Mrs. Kroening plans to operate a friendly family style diner between the hours of 6:00 AM to 2:00 PM, 
seven days a week.  She has requested a TIF Grant of $44,274.00 as follows: 
 
New Roof estimated at $24,000.00 funded @75% per Midtown TIF Phase I guidelines     $18,000 
ADA Restroom installation $$17,274 funded @50% per Midtown TIF Phase I guidelines     8,637 
 
Total recommended TIF Subsidy:                                                                                         $26,637 
 
The committee recommends an annual subsidy grant of $5,327 disbursed over a term of 5 years 
commencing in the month of September 2010 and continuing through September of 2014 subject to the 
availability of Midtown TIF funds. 

 



2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Annual TIF Dispersed --> $1,000 53,708.74$ 14,297.51$    52,548.52$   74,169.02$   110,207      123,849      106,374      106,374      106,374      104,248      96,102        

Annual TIF Increment --> $26,281 85,954.66$ 150,208.26$  127,077.00$  147,144.10$ 

Address Business Name Date Applicant Description Project Total 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Fiscal Year 2005

1713-1721 Marion Ave 12-Dec-04 Rob Perry Relocate Fire Hydrant 1,000$              1,000$        

Fiscal Year 2006

Lake Land Blvd D&H Associates, L.L.C 22-Jun-05 Mark Dust Demolition Grant 40,000$             4,000$          4,000$          4,000$        4,000$        4,000$        4,000$        4,000$        4,000$        4,000$        

1510 Broadway Freesmeier Chiropractic 8-Jun-05 Don Freesmeier Façade/Structural 47,000$             9,400$           9,400$          9,400$          9,400$        9,400$        

1821 Broadway C.J's Club 18-Oct-05 Helen Johnson Façade/Structural 5,351$              3,709$        1,643$           

1410 Broadway 1-Dec-05 Tony Eaton Building Renovation 50,000$             50,000$      

Fiscal Year 2007

1412 Broadway Broadway Beef Café 18-Jul Tony Eaton Façade/Structural 50,000$             5,000$          5,000$          5,000$        5,000$        5,000$        5,000$        5,000$        5,000$        5,000$        

1412 Broadway Broadway Beef Café 18-Jul-06 Tony Eaton Interest Subsidy 15,000$             1,500$          1,500$          1,500$        1,500$        1,500$        1,500$        1,500$        1,500$        1,500$        

1424 Broadway Jul-06 John Chevas Structural Repairs 3,255$              3,255$           

1414 Broadway Jeleniz Jul-06 Jeff Eaton Façade/Structural 38,620$             3,862$          3,862$          3,862$        3,862$        3,862$        3,862$        3,862$        3,862$        3,862$        

1609 Broadway Sound Source Music 6-Feb-07 Mike Kallis Architectural 5,000$              5,000$          

1608 Broadway Merle Norman Cosmetic 6-Feb-07 Renee England Façade 2,000$              2,000$          

1628 Broadway Jack and Bills Clothing 20-Feb-07 Steve Hardin Façade/Structural 38,186$             3,819$          3,819$          3,819$        3,819$        3,819$        3,819$        3,819$        3,819$        3,819$        

604 Lake Land Blvd. Spin Doctor Car Wash Apr-07 Meyer/Wortman Demolition/Utilities 46,000$             4,600$          4,600$        4,600$        4,600$        4,600$        4,600$        4,600$        4,600$        

Fiscal Year 2008

1601 Broadway Warner's Office Equipment 15-May-07 Janice Moritz Façade/Structural 5,000$              5,000$          

1321 Broadway EZ Parcel 15-May-07 Nathan Burton Engineering 5,000$              5,000$          

1400 - 1404 Broadway Sanders' Real Estate 15-May-07 Cory Sanders Façade/Structural 54,680$             5,468$          5,468$          5,468$        5,468$        5,468$        5,468$        5,468$        5,468$        5,468$        

1321 Broadway EZ Parcel 7-Aug-07 Nathan Burton Storm water Detention 7,500$              2,500$          2,500$          2,500$        

1400-04 Broadway Sanders' Real Estate 7-Aug-07 Cory Sanders Code Compliance 29,455$             2,946$          2,946$        2,946$        2,946$        2,946$        2,946$        2,946$        2,946$        

1810 Broadway Little Mexico 2-Oct-07 Keith Summers Façade/Structural 80,000$             8,000$          8,000$        8,000$        8,000$        8,000$        8,000$        8,000$        8,000$        

604 Lake Land Blvd Spin Doctor Car Wash 6-Nov-07 Meyer/Wortman Infrastructure Extensions 9,600$              3,200$          3,200$        3,200$        

1614 Broadway Shores' Jewelry and Other Business 6-Nov-07 Harold Shores Façade 70,000$             7,000$          7,000$        7,000$        7,000$        7,000$        7,000$        7,000$        7,000$        

1522-1524 Broadway Broadway Furniture Store 1-Dec-07 Bob Walker Façade/Structural 80,000$             8,000$          8,000$        8,000$        8,000$        8,000$        8,000$        8,000$        8,000$        

1400 Broadway Sanders' Real Estate 1-Mar-08 Cory Sanders Façade 31,742$             3,174$        3,174$        3,174$        3,174$        3,174$        3,174$        3,174$        

1609 Broadway Sound Source Music 1-Mar-08 Mike Kallis Façade 10,631$             2,126$        2,126$        2,126$        2,126$        2,126$        

1516 Broadway Nail Salon 1-Mar-08 Marilyn McClean Façade/Structural 42,525$             4,253$        4,253$        4,253$        4,253$        4,253$        4,253$        4,253$        

Fiscal Year 2009

1317-21 Charleston New Office Building 15-Apr-08 Scott Stoltzfus Infrastructure Ext. 79,200$             7,920$        7,920$        7,920$        7,920$        7,920$        7,920$        7,920$        

1611 Broadway D to Z Sports 5-Aug-08 Robert Reid Roof 13,110$             1,311$        1,311$        1,311$        1,311$        1,311$        1,311$        1,311$        

118 S. 17th Street Doug & Jeanne Vonderheide 5-Aug-08 Jeanne VonderheideFaçade 51,590$             5,159$        5,159$        5,159$        5,159$        5,159$        5,159$        5,159$        

1913 Western Ave. A K Investments 4-Nov-08 John Armstrong Façade-Exterior Wall $14,625 4,875            4,875          4,875          

1601 Broadway Warner's Office Equipment 4-Nov-08 Janice Moritz Roof $66,950 6,695          6,695          6,695          6,695          6,695          6,695          6,695          

1406 Broadway Club Oasis 20-Jan-09 Thomas Rogers Jr. Roof $5,400 5,400          

2001 Western Ave.     deBuhr Seed & Feed Inc. 20-Jan-09 Benard deBuhr Jr. Façade/Structural $14,092.90 2,819          2,819          2,819          2,819          2,819          

2020 Prairie Ave. Comm.Refrig. Of Central IL, Inc, 20-Jan-09 Joseph Gillettee Façade/Structural $53,961.00 5,396          5,396          5,396          5,396          5,396          5,396          

1528 Broadway Ave        Freesmeier Office Building  3-Mar-09 Don Freesmeier Façade/Structural/Code     $80,000.00 8,000          8,000          8,000          8,000          8,000          8,000          

1626 Broadway Ave        Broadway Café 7-Mar-09 Jan Kroening Roof/Code Compliance $26,637.00 5,327          5,327          5,327          5,327          5,327          

1,173,111$        1,000$        53,709$      14,298$         52,549$        74,169$        110,207$    123,849$    106,374$    106,374$    106,374$    104,248$    96,102$      



 
 
 
 

CITY OF MATTOON, ILLINOIS 
 

SPECIAL ORDINANCE NO. 2009 - 1325 
 

A SPECIAL ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND CITY CLERK TO 
SIGN A PROMISSORY NOTE AND ASSOCIATED DOCUMENTS WITH FIRST MID-

ILLINOIS BANK & TRUST, N.A. FOR THE FUTUREGEN PROJECT 
 
WHEREAS, On December 18, 2007 Mattoon was selected by the FutureGen Industrial 
Alliance, Inc., a Delaware 501(c)(3) non-profit corporation, as the site for the construction of the 
world’s first near-zero emissions coal fired power plant; and, 
 
WHEREAS, Coles Together made certain incentive offers to the FutureGen Industrial Alliance 
to induce them to choose Mattoon as the site for this project; and, 
 
WHEREAS, by Special Ordinance 2008 - 1285, the City of Mattoon has approved an 
Intergovernmental Agreement with Coles Together containing the terms and conditions 
pertaining to the procurement by the City of Mattoon of an irrevocable letter of credit and other 
borrowing to satisfy one of those incentive offers; and, 
 
WHEREAS, City of Mattoon desires to ensure that this project moves forward in a timely 
manner, believes that this project is of the upmost importance to the citizens of Mattoon and 
knows that it is in the best interest of the citizens of Mattoon to provide assistance to Coles  
Together; and,   
 
WHEREAS, by Special Ordinance 2008 – 1286, the City of Mattoon approved a letter of credit 
from First Mid-Illinois Bank & Trust, N.A. in the amount of Three Million and no/100 Dollars 
($3,000,000.00) to satisfy the incentives offered by Coles Together; and, 
 
WHEREAS, since the issuance of that letter of credit the Futuregen Industrial Alliance has been 
provided the Three Million and no/100 dollars ($3,000,000.00) by a combination of donations to 
Coles Together and borrowing on the letter of credit; and, 
 
WHEREAS, that letter of credit has expired and the principal amount remaining outstanding on 
the letter of credit is Two Million Sixty-Eight Thousand Eighty-Three and 67/100 Dollars 
($2,068,083.67); and, 
 
WHEREAS, The City desires to transfer the amount remaining on the letter of credit into a 
promissory note for a period of one (1) year to allow Coles Together to collect on the remaining 
pledges it has received on this project; and,  
 



WHEREAS, the primary missions of the City of Mattoon are economic development and the 
creation of jobs for Mattoon and the surrounding areas; and  
 
WHEREAS, the FutureGen project will be of historic proportions in terms of jobs and 
economic development for the City of Mattoon and all of Central Illinois; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the Constitution of the State of Illinois, at Article VII, Section 10 and the Statutes 
of the State of Illinois allow for the City of Mattoon to provide this type and form of 
development assistance to individuals and organizations. 
 
WHEREAS, the Illinois Statutes, at 65 ILCS 5/8-1-3.1, allow the City of Mattoon to execute 
the type of obligation provided for in this Special Ordinance.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL FOR THE CITY OF 
MATTOON, COLES COUNTY, A MUNICIPAL CORPORATION, as follows:  
 
Section 1.   The facts and statements contained in the preamble to this Ordinance are found to be 
true and correct and are hereby adopted as part of this Special Ordinance. 
 
Section 2.  The Mayor and City Clerk are authorized and directed to sign the attached 
documents, attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and incorporated herein by this reference, for the 
issuance of a promissory note in the principal amount of Two Million Sixty-Eight Thousand 
Eighty-Three and 67/100 Dollars ($2,068,083.67) by First Mid-Illinois Bank & Trust, N.A. on 
behalf of Coles Together.   
 
Section 3. The Mayor and City Clerk are also authorized to do any act and sign any additional 
documents necessary to implement the intent of this Ordinance. Including, but not limited to, 
signing one twelve (12) month extension of this note if the note is not paid in full by March 16, 
2010.  
 
Section 4. This ordinance shall be deemed published as of the day of its adoption and approval 
by the City Council. 
 
Upon motion by ______________________, seconded by ________________________, 
adopted this    day of    , 2009, by a roll call vote, as follows: 
 
AYES (Names):   __________________________________________ 
   __________________________________________ 
   __________________________________________ 
NAYS (Names):  __________________________________________ 
ABSENT (Names): __________________________________________ 
      
Approved this    day of    , 2009. 
 



            
            
       David W. Cline, Mayor 
       City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois  
 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
             
Susan J. O’Brien, City Clerk     J. Preston Owen, City Attorney 
 
 
 
Recorded in the Municipality’s Records on _________________________, 2009.  
 
   



EXHIBIT A




